
MINUTES OF A STUDY SESSION OF THE PRINCETON CITY COUNCIL HELD ON 
FEBRUARY 5, 2009, 4:30 P.M. IN THE CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 
************************************************************************************************************ 
 
Mayor Riddle called the meeting to order. Council members present were Mayor Jeremy Riddle 
and Councilors Paul Whitcomb, Dick Dobson, Victoria Hallin, and Lee Steinbrecher. Staff 
present was Mark Karnowski, Steve Jackson, Jay Blake, Bob Gerold, Brian Payne, Jim Rox-
bury, Mary Lou Dewitt, and Ann Bien. Also present was City Attorney Dick Schieffer. 
 
PINE LOFT LIQUOR LICENSE HEARING 
 
The City Council followed the procedures described in the published agenda: 
A. Open Hearing 
B. Staff Presentation 
C. Licensee Comments 
D. Close Hearing 
E. Council Consideration 
 
The following exhibits were introduced and accepted by the council: 
1. A copy of the City of Princeton Liquor License Regulations, Chapter 410, together with 

Exhibit E establishing fees; 
2. A copy of Karnowski letter of Jan. 23, 2009, notifying the Applicant of the hearing on 

suspension or revocation of the license; 
3. A copy of a letter from the Applicant delivered to City Hall on Jan. 23, 2009, including 

two checks identified in these minutes as Exhibits 4 and 5; 
4. A copy of a check from the Applicant to the City in the amount of $1,350 in partial pay-

ment of the liquor license fee, received on Jan. 23, 2009; 
5. A copy of a check from the Applicant to the City, post dated to Feb. 6, 2009, in the 

amount of $1,350, received on Jan. 23, 2009; 
6. A copy of Karnowski letter of Jan. 30, 2009, returning the two checks (Exhibits 4 and5) 

to the Applicant; 
 
Karnowski explained that the Council scheduled this hearing for Bob Simon, the Applicant for 
the liquor license in question, to appear before the Council to pass on the consequences of non-
payment of the liquor license fees for the Pine Loft Restaurant Lounge & Catering. He informed 
the Council that a notice of the hearing was hand delivered to the Applicant on January 23, 
2009, by the Police Department. On the afternoon of Feb. 5, 2009, Mr. Simon left a message in 
Karnowski’s voice mail, saying that he was unable to attend the meeting because his cook did 
not show up for work and he had to fill in.  Mr. Simon did not request that the hearing be post-
poned.  
 
City Attorney Schieffer reviewed Exhibit 1, stating that the Applicant could not sell intoxicating 
liquor without a license, that an application for license renewal must be accompanied by the li-
cense fee, that the license is conditioned upon the Applicant’s compliance with all regulations in 
the Ordinance or State Statute, and that if the Council finds that the Applicant has failed to 
comply with the Ordinance or State Statute, the Council may revoke the license, suspend the 
license for up to 60 days, or impose a civil fine not to exceed $2,000, or any combination the-
reof.  He explained the Council should hear evidence from City Staff and then allow the appli-
cant to have the opportunity to be heard.  Schieffer further stated that since Simon did not at-
tend the meeting, the Council could postpone the hearing, or it could hear the staff testimony 
and then leave the record open for several days to give Simon an opportunity to present his ex-
planation in writing. 
 
 
 



February 5, 2009 
Page 2 
 
Dobson stated he agreed with Schieffer to give Simon five more days to respond in writing and 
asked what was the status of the license. Schieffer stated Simon does have a valid license even 
though the fee is not paid. 
 
DOBSON MOVED TO PROCEED WITH THE HEARING. HALLIN SECONDED THE MOTION. 
ON THE VOTE: AYES - 5; NAYS - 0. THE MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
Schieffer explained that the staff’s testimony would show that the issue before the Council  is 
what action should be taken for the non-payment of the liquor license fee. He explained that the 
license was approved on December 30th, 2008, upon Simon’s promise to pay the license fee 
immediately.  He stated again that the license can be suspended for up to 60 days, revoked, or 
a civil penalty may be imposed for non-payment, or any combination of these penalties. 
 
Schieffer then asked Deputy City Clerk Ann Bien to explain her contacts with Simon regarding 
the license application.. She reported she sent renewal letters out in November, 2008, request-
ing that applications for renewal, proof of insurance, and payment of the license fee ($2500 in-
toxicating liquor license fee, plus $200 for Sunday Liquor fee) be received for approval at the 
first Council meeting on December 11, 2008. (Schieffer noted that the Ordinance requires that 
renewal applications be filed by Dec. 10, each year.)  Simon did not respond so Bien called him 
before the December 30th meeting and informed him she needed the paperwork and payment 
by the 30th. He provided the paperwork on Dec. 30, 2008, but not the license fee, but assured 
her he would make the payment by January 2nd, 2009. She added Simon’s application to the 
agenda because of Simon’s promise he would pay by January 2nd. Bien further stated that she  
was absent from work on Friday, Jan. 2nd and when she returned on Monday, January 5th, she 
found Simon had not dropped off the check. Bien called Simon and he promised he would bring 
the license fee in that week, (Jan. 2 through 4, 2009) but Simon did not do so.  In the ensuing 
weeks of January, 2009, Bien testified that she had three additional conversations with Simon 
about payment of the license fee, and each time he promised to pay, but did not do so. On one 
occasion, he asked if he could pay the fee in two installment  payments. Bien  told Simon he 
could not pay in installments and verified that information with Finance Director Steve Jackson.  
During her last conversation with Simon, Bien told him if payment is not received by January 
22nd, 2009 she would place the matter on the agenda of the City Council for possible action on 
January 22nd. Schieffer asked and Bien answered that she did not write the letter, (Exhibit 2) but 
she knew Karnowski had a letter hand delivered to Simon after 4:00 p.m. on Jan. 23rd, 2009. 
(City Hall closed at 3:00 p.m.)  
 
Bien stated that on the afternoon of Friday, Jan. 23, 2009, she returned to City Hall about 4:45 
p.m. to meet a citizen regarding the cemetery. At 5:10 p.m. Simon came into City Hall and 
handed her an envelope. She dated and wrote the delivery time on the envelope and placed it 
on her desk. She did not open it until Monday morning (January 26th) and found a letter (Exhibit 
3) and two checks inside (Exhibits 4 and 5). One check for $1,350 was dated January 23, 2009, 
and the other check for $1,350 was post dated February 6, 2009. Bien gave the letter and 
checks to Karnowski and did not have any further contact with Simon or any other staff member 
regarding payment of the license fee. 
 
Schieffer then asked Jackson if he had any information regarding this issue. Jackson described 
his involvement  regarding the installment payments offered by Simon. Jackson stated that Bien 
had asked him if the City could accept two installment payments for liquor license fees,  and he 
told her the city could not do so. He also stated Simon’s wife left a voice message for Jackson 
asking why they could not pay the license fee in two payments. He stated he called her the fol-
lowing day and left her a message that the liquor license ordinance requires full payment with 
the application. Jackson told the Applicant’s wife that they could not make two installments 
payments,  nor pay with a post dated check. Schieffer referred Jackson to the section of the Or- 



February 5, 2009 
Page 3 
 
dinance (Exhibit 1) requiring that every application for license be accompanied by a receipt from 
the City Treasurer stating that the license fee had been paid.  Jackson stated that the Appli-
cant’s 2009 liquor license fee had not been paid in full, and further stated that no receipt was 
made because full payment was not received.  
 
Schieffer then asked Karnowski to explain his involvement. Karnowski explained that Bien had 
informed him that she had made accommodations to Simon to place the license renewal on the 
council agenda without receiving full payment of the license fee, because of the promise that 
payment would be made within a day or so. In mid January, Jackson came into his office re-
garding Mrs. Simon’s request to pay in installments. They agreed the ordinance states full pay-
ment must be received with the application and this information was given to Mrs Simon. Since 
no payment had been received by January 22nd, Karnowski took it to the Council for their con-
sideration. At the meeting, the Council directed him to give Simon a letter notifying him of the 
hearing. This letter (Exhibit 2) was hand delivered to Simon by the Police Department on Janu-
ary 23rd. The letter advised Simon that the Council will be considering if the license should be 
suspended or revoked for non-payment. He was advised by Bien that an envelope was deli-
vered by Simon to City Hall on January 23rd at 5:10 p.m. She opened the envelope on Monday, 
the 26th, and gave Karnowski the letter and two checks which were inside. One check was post 
dated February 6, 2009. Karnowski contacted Schieffer, and on his advice, returned the checks 
to Simon on the 30th of January along with a letter stating the Ordinance does not permit  partial 
payments and post dated checks would not be accepted for liquor license fees. He urged Simon 
in the letter to attend the hearing on Feb. 5, 2009. Karnowski again explained that he received a 
voice mail on the afternoon of Feb. 6th, 2009, in which Simon stated that he had intended to at-
tend the meeting but was unable to do so because he had to cook at his restaurant. Simon did 
not ask that this hearing be postponed until a later date.  
 
Schieffer advised the Council that in deciding  what action, if any, they would decide to take, the 
council could consider that the application was not filed by December 10, 2008 as required by 
Ordinance, that the application did not contain the Treasurer’s receipt of license fee paid in full,  
and that in spite of several promises by the Applicant to pay the required fees, only partial pay-
ment was tendered. 
 
Steinbrecher asked if the City had called the bank to see if the checks could be cashed, Kar-
nowski answered no, stating that he did not feel he could accept a post dated checks. 
 
Riddle asked that if Simon brought both checks in tomorrow, February 6, 2008 and they were 
good, could we take them in payment of the license fee, and Schieffer answered yes, since the 
post dated check would be current tomorrow. However, the City would still have the authority to 
take action for a violation of the ordinance. 
 
Schieffer recommended the Council make a motion to conclude this part of the hearing, but 
leave it open for the applicant to have an opportunity to give his explanation.  
 
DOBSON MOVED TO ALLOW SIMON UNTIL FEBRUARY 9, 2009, AT 4:30 P.M. TO RE-
SPOND IN WRITING ADDRESSING THESE CONCERNS. HALLIN SECONDED THE MO-
TION. ON THE VOTE: AYES - 5; NAYS - 0. THE MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
Karnowski stated he will draft a letter advising Simon of the City Council action, and have it 
hand delivered to Simon this evening. 
 
RIDDLE MOVED TO CONTINUE THIS HEARING UNTIL FEBRUARY 12, 2009, AT 7:00 P.M. 
DOBSON SECONDED THE MOTION. ON THE VOTE: AYES - 5; NAYS - 0. THE MOTION 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 



February 5, 2009 
Page 4 
 
 
HISTORIC DISTRICT DISCUSSION (MIKE KOOP) 
 
Mike Koop, from the State Historical Preservation Office, gave a summary of the history of the 
State Historical Preservation Office, the National Historical Preservation Act, and the National 
Register of Historic Places. He explained historic preservation is more effective when the local 
authority has a comprehensive program of historic preservation in effect. He stated he reviewed 
the City’s ordinance and recommended the ordinance designates the advisory committee a 
commission.  
 
Koop explained the City can become a certified local government (CLG), which promotes pre-
servation at the grassroots level across the nation. He reviewed the requirements and process 
to become a CLG. He stated there are currently 1,661 CLG cities nationwide, with 39 in Minne-
sota. He stated matching grants are available, but not large grants, since the State only receives 
$80,000. The City would have financial obligations and reviewed projects available for grants. 
He explained grants go to the City, not to private property owners. 
 
Koop explained the National Register is not the same program as a CLG. Steinbrecher asked if 
the statement that an owner can deny this designation, could the City still become a CLG and 
Koop answered no. 
 
Riddle asked if there is federal funding available under the National Register list. Koop ex-
plained there would be a tax credit for income based property. He also stated there is no guar-
antee that grants would be available if the city becomes a CLG. He added preservation is not as 
costly as perceived, but the public thinks they need financial assistance from the government. 
 
Koop added  another concern of the city was the amount of time required by city staff. He stated 
there is a certain amount of time required by someone (whoever is designated). One require-
ment relating to the CLG is an annual report to their office. Dobson asked if members of the 
Commission can be designated and Koop answered yes. 
 
ROUNDABOUT & BRIDGE UPDATE/DISCUSSION – CHAD HAUSMAN (WSB) 
 
Deleted 
 
2009 BUDGET DISCUSSION 
 
Karnowski reported he and Jackson have had discussions that it appears timely for the Council 
to respond to the Governor’s proposed budget. He stated no one he has talked to feels Local 
Government Aid (LGA) is safe. He suggested the Council may want to consider preparing to cut 
something in excess of the currently projected $450,000 LGA cuts for 2009 and 2010. He stated 
if that number proves to be too high, it would be easier to add back cuts than to make further 
cuts. 
 
Karnowski reviewed the list of 12 possible options to reduce the budget.  
 
One of the options was to “furlough” (leave without pay) the full-time employees a number of 
days in 2009 and 2010. He stated he has set up a meeting with the unions to discuss salary ad-
justments.  
 
 
 
 



February 5, 2009 
Page 4 
 
 
Steinbrecher asked what effect “furloughing” would have on the Public Works and Police De-
partments. Karnowski stated it would have an impact, since the City is already short one person 
in Public works. Steinbrecher stated he thinks we all need to realize what we do will affect the 
community, but local businesses are also having to make these types of cuts. 
 
Dobson asked Payne if an officer could be on furlough without another officer having to fill in 
and paying overtime. Payne told the Council they have one officer to cover sick, holiday, and 
vacation days, but they don’t have someone to cover additional hours. Karnowski explained the 
City would have to move away from its current standard. He stated they would have to look at 
the schedule and decide which nights are typically busier than others and cut back on the slow-
er days/nights, or go one night without coverage by the City and depend on the County. Dobson 
stated that from his past experience, Princeton is the only city in the county that had an officer 
on 24/7. He added the county can only have so many deputies on the road. 
 
Dobson asked if the Council and salaried staff should also take a cut if other employees are be-
ing asked to give up one day. Karnowski stated salaried staff would be included in a furlough, 
only part-time employees would be excluded. Payne stated a pay freeze was suggested by 
some  officers, or his department could push back the purchase of a new squad if it would save 
an employee and/or hours. 
 
Dobson stated he would not like to see a lot of money transferred out of the liquor fund because 
it could be needed to keep store open. 
 
Hallin stated Governor Pawlenty had talked about a 2- year wage freeze, so she likes the wage 
freeze idea suggested by Payne. She also stated seh agrees with Dobson’s idea that the Coun-
cil could also take a cut. She added, however, that since she has been on the Council (6 years), 
they have not received a raise, so, in essence, they have had a wage freeze. 
 
Dobson stated he also thinks Board payments could be cut back to $10/meeting or cut out com-
pletely. 
 
Riddle stated the department heads need to make a decision if they can support a furlough or 
make reductions elsewhere. He stated furloughs would not have to be every month, two could 
be per month. Steinbrecher stated he thinks a furlough is a must, that it is fair because it affects 
every department. 
 
Payne asked if a person could use their vacation to cover the furloughed day. Karnowski stated 
there the City would need employees to have one day without pay. 
 
Dobson asked if City Hall be open less hours. Karnowski stated several cities have gone to four 
10 hour days. Dobson stated he thinks citizens would rather lose one day of City Hall than lose 
police coverage. 
 
Steinbrecher stated he thinks we should think in terms of total dollars and let the departments 
decide what items are critical in capital improvement. Karnowski suggested the City might be 
able to get good bids for sealcoating if bids were let out now since oil is down. 
 
Karnowski stated the goal is to try to maintain a level of service the citizens are expecting. He 
added he is not going to Clerk’s Conference this year to cut back in that cost. Dobson sug-
gested the Council is also going to have to pick and choose what conferences and events coun-
cil/employees can attend. 
 



February 5, 2009 
Page 5 
 
 
Karnowski will try to have more information at the February 12th meeting. 
 
AUTO MUTUAL AID (BALDWIN) DISCUSSION – CHIEF ROXBURY 
 
Roxbury reported he is working with  Baldwin Township to get a better working relationship be-
tween the Fire Departments. He stated he was notified a week ago ISO will be coming  in to re-
rate the department. He suggested it would be a benefit to have an automatic mutual aid 
agreement with the Northeast Sherburne County Fire Department since they are within five 
miles of our department. He stated he would like to have an agreement in effect by the week of 
February 23rd .  
 
HALLIN MOVED TO APPROVE STAFF ENTERING INTO AN AUTOMATIC MUTUAL AID 
AGREEMENT WITH NORTHEAST SHERBURNE COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENT AND TO 
AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR AND CITY ADMINISTRATOR TO SIGN THE AGREEMENTS. 
DOBSON SECONDED THE MOTION. ON THE VOTE: AYES - 5; NAYS - 0. THE MOTION 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
SALE OF JETTER TRUCK 
 
Gerold reported the new jetter/vacuum truck is expected to arrive in April. He requested authori-
zation to begin advertising the sale of the old truck.  
 
STEINBRECHER MOVED TO AUTHORIZE STAFF TO BEGIN ADVERTISING THE SALE OF 
THE CITY’S OLD JETTER TRUCK AND VACUUM TRAILER. DOBSON SECONDED THE 
MOTION. ON THE VOTE: AYES - 5; NAYS - 0. THE MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
PERSONNEL 
 
DOBSON MOVED TO APPROVE THE HIRING OF KRIS MACKO AS A SKATING RINK AT-
TENDANT @ $7.00/HR. EFFECTIVE 01-26-09. STEINBRECHER SECONDED THE MOTION. 
ON THE VOTE: AYES - 5; NAYS - 0. THE MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
Karnowski  reported Ann Bien has turned in her letter of retirement effective on or about March 
27, 2009. He suggested the position be changed to City Clerk. 
 
HALLIN MOVED TO AUTHORIZE STAFF TO CHANGE THE JOB TITLE TO CITY CLERK, 
MODIFY THE MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS, AND ADVERTISE THE OPEN POSITION. DOB-
SON SECONDED THE MOTION. ON THE VOTE: AYES - 5; NAYS - 0. THE MOTION CAR-
RIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
There being no further business, STEINBRECHER MOVED TO ADJOURN AT 7:00 P.M. DOB-
SON SECONDED THE MOTION. ON THE VOTE: AYES - 5; NAYS - 0. THE MOTION CAR-
RIED UNANIMOUSLY. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
Ann Bien, Deputy City Clerk 

ATTEST: 
       
Jeremy Riddle, Mayor 


